
MINUTES OF STREETS AND ROADS COMMITTEE MEETING
FOR TOWN OF STAR VALLEY

Thursday, March 11, 2010 @ 6:00pm
3632 East Highway 260, Star Valley, AZ.

 CALL TO ORDER
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

 ROLL CALL
 Present: Chairperson Richard Pinkerton , Vice-Chairperson Steven Vincent, 

Member Matt Benjamin, Member Mark Freegard, Member Larry 
Stephenson.

 Absent/Excused: Member Fred Horton Sr, Member Pete Hold .
 Public: Patty Henderson, Diane Vincent
 CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:

1. Approval of the minutes from the Streets and Roads Commission meeting 
held on November 12, 2009.

Motion: Action: Approve the minutes, Moved by Chairperson Richard 
Pinkerton , Seconded by Member Mark Freegard.

 DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEMS:

1. Discussion and update regarding storm damage to bridge crossing on 
Rainbow and Houston Drive.

Chairperson Pinkerton stated that the stream bed near Houston trailer park 
sustained damage and needs repairs. Building Official Joe Janusz stated that 
several contractors are reviewing backwashed apron issues in the stream bed,
however, the debris is an issue. Mr. Janusz further stated that the Star Valley 
street crew will need to clean the area out before a contractor can review the 
issues. Mr. Janusz stated he would guess the damage repair to cost around three 
thousand dollars to the Town (3,000.00). Commission Member Stephenson 
stated he had not seen the stream beds run so quickly with such a capacity of 
water as they did during the heavy rain storm. Chairperson Pinkerton agreed 
and stated that erosion on Mayfield Canyon rd is also an issue. Mr. Janusz 
stated 4” of undercut and rocks could help to fix the issues. The street crew men 
could fix the problem without the need of contractors. 
****
2. Discussion and update regarding storm damage to Star Valley streets and 

roads.
Chairperson Pinkerton stated this item was discussed in agenda item one. 

3. Discussion and possible action regarding the placement of 15mph signs and 
‘Children at Play’ signs on Orion Dr. 



Chairperson Pinkerton stated that north of the Star Valley Baptist Church the 
side roads have extremely fast drivers and the Commission has had several 
requests for safety signs. Chairperson Pinkerton further stated that any 15mph
road signs would have to be approved by the Sheriff’s department before the 
Town could proceed. Vice-Chairperson Vincent asked if the signs would work to 
slow down traffic based on past experiences. Chairperson Pinkerton stated he 
felt they had helped in the past to slow traffic down. Mr. Janusz stated the Town 
does have street signs at Town Hall if and when the Commission is ready to put 
them in.

Motion: Action: Approve the consent agenda items, Moved by Member 
Larry Stephenson, Seconded by Member Mark Freegard.

4. Discussion and possible action regarding parking control on Moonlight Dr. 
with parallel or no parking options.

Chairperson Pinkerton stated that in the past diagonal parking along the side of 
the ‘Lumberman’s’ building on Moonlight Dr just before 260 hwy has always 
caused a safety issue. Chairperson Pinkerton suggested either ‘No Parking’ signs 
or parallel parking be enforced in this area. Chairperson Pinkerton further 
added that this is a safety issue for the Town as it is in the Town’s right of way. 
Vice-Chairperson Vincent suggested waiting on any action until the building is 
bought or some other change is made. Commission Member Stephenson 
suggested placing ‘No Truck Parking’ signs to reduce the size of vehicles using 
the space. Commission Member Freegard also suggested waiting if there are no 
zoning issues.

Motion: Action: To delay on the agenda item for the building to be rented 
or bought before changing in parking is discussed. Moved by Member Larry 
Stephenson, Seconded by Member Mark Freegard.

5. Discussion and possible action regarding repairs of flood damage on 
Mayfield Canyon Rd.

Mr. Janusz stated he had discussed the issue with the Town street crew on how 
to control erosion inside the curve off of Skyrun Dr. The street crew felt the 
Town needs to compact the area with rock and gunite the surface five foot width 
from ditch. Mr. Janusz also stated that the APS box at bottom of the curve 
would need to be reinforced to keep erosion from obstructing it as well. 
Chairperson Pinkerton stated he believed 725’ of materials would be needed to 
complete the job. Chairperson Pinkerton stated he did feel that something
needed to be done before another storm hits

Motion: Action: Approve the consent agenda items, Moved by Vice-
Chairperson Steven Vincent, Seconded by Member Larry Stephenson.

6. Discussion and possible action regarding hot mix repairs for Moonlight Dr. 
(south of Starlight Drive) and Rainbow Dr (inside of curves by trailer park).

Chairperson Pinkerton stated that the inside of the curve keeps getting hit and
cold patch will not hold. Chairperson Pinkerton stated that a 145’ along the 



curve with hot mix would be required. Further more the mail boxes have cold 
patches which are getting torn up. This will require 3500’ total for both areas 
hot mix. Commission Member Freegard asked who would be doing the work. 
Mr. Janusz stated the Town street crew can do the work

Motion: Action: Approve the consent agenda items, Moved by Member 
Larry Stephenson, Seconded by Member Mark Freegard.

7. Discussion and presentation by Bill Heath regarding the possible dedication 
of Latigo Ln. to the Town of Star Valley. 

Mr. Heath presented to the Commission his request for dedication of Latigo 
Lane, a private road, to the Town of Star Valley for maintenance and upgrades. 
Mr. Heath displayed a road map of the area for the Commission to view. 
Discussion of neighbors and right of ways along with possible improvements as 
well as possible Town liability issues were all discussed by the Commission 
Members. 

 COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC
NONE

 Motion: Action: Adjourn, Moved by Member Mark Freegard, Seconded 
by Member Larry Stephenson.


